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John Dods house was built in two sections. The wing,
the original house, was built in the early 1700's. The interior
of the stone walls, in the wing, are pointed with mud and horse-
hair. It has a steep pitched roof and a deep overhang in the
front. The windows are 12 over 8 and most of the glass is original.
It was a one room structure, 15' X 15', with a boxed-in narrow
stairway of worn treds leading to the loft. The original fire
place was removed years ago but the outline of the beehive oven
is still visible on the exterior wall. The framework of this fire-
place has been exposed with the removal of the old plaster ceiling.
Pegs used to hang herbs or equipment still remain in the beams.
The ceiling beams are beautifully finished with few axe marks. The
floor boards of the loft, visible from below, are 20 inches wide.
The hand-hewn rafters of the loft are pegged with no ridge pole.
The floor boards of the wing were removed and underneath these, the
original floor boards and hearth stones were uncovered.

The main house was added in 1770. An exterior feature,
characteristic of the pre-revolutionary. Dutch houses is the cellar
hatch near the front door. The original Dutch door opens onto
the large center hall. At the other end of the 8' X 18' hall is
another door which opens to the back porch, a later addition.

The woodwork around the staircase is pegged, as is the bannister.
There is a unique carving over the door, under the staircase.
Tie-rods run the length of the hall, tying the exterior stone
walls together.

There are carved sunburst designs on the fireplace mantles
of the dining room and living room. The dining room windows are
12 over 12 and those of the living room are 6 over 6, the majority
of which appear to be original or old panes of glass. Interesting
cupboards are in both dining and living rooms next to the fire-
places. The ceilings of the first floor are over 8' high.

Although the ceilings of the second floor are lower, the
rooms are large with deep sills running along the exterior walls.

Dutch Dormers, are on the both the front and back of the house.
The chimneys are on the inside of the house and are constructed
of thin, handmade bricks, pointed with mud. A flue has been
added to the chimney in use.

The ceiling beams in the cellar are hand-hewn. The fireplace
supports, in the shape of an arch and resembling fireplaces them-
selves, are also in the cellar.
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A kitchen and back porch were added to the main house in the
20th century. :

The well still exists. The walls are of fitted stonework to
a depth of 18 feet. At the base, the walls widen into a round
basin.

Dods Tavern
John Dods Tavern was built in 1752.

The original structure consisted of the present living room,
bedroom, music room and front entrance on the first floor; the
attic, two bedrooms and attic closet on the second floor. The
outer walls, the partitions between the bedroom and the living
room and the living room and the kitchen are of random field-
stone 18 inches thick put together with clay and pointed-up
with lime or plaster replaced later by cement. The upper part
of the building, is nearly all of wood construction with clap-
board on the outside. The joists and rafters are hand-hewn,
mortise and tennon joints and pinned with wood dowels. The
exposed beams on the living room ceiling are from tulip trees
which were native in these parts at that time. The bedroom
(over the cellar) is supported by five huge, rough hewn beams
nine inches square, about 17 feet long and keyed to the foun-
dation walls. The floor boards are from 9 to 16 inches wide.
The original windows are those in the first floor bedroom, the
two windows in the living room and the two windows in the music
room. Parts of some windows have been replaced. The windows
in the living room and bedroom have the traditional 12 and 8
or 6 and 3 small panes of glass. The window blinds or shutters
are gone and have not been replaced but on half of some of the
hand forged hinges are still imbeded in the stone wall or window
casing.

Thomas Dods occupied these premises in 1850, extensive
changes were made. The outdoor chimney of the fireplace and the
Dutch oven in the living room was removed and the kitchen added.
While the outer walls of the kitchen are identical to the walls
of the older portion of the structure, the joists and rafters
are not hand-hewn but lumber, the dimensions of which are some-
what larger than the present framing lumber.

GPO. 892 455
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The inside walls on the first floor are coated with plaster
directly on the stone except in the bedroom where there is an
air space between the stone and the plaster. This space is filled
with small shells and bran of cereal grain. Partitions etc., on
the second floor are wood lath and plaster as are the ceilings.

What is now the cellar (only under the first floor bedroom)
was a place for storage, presumably, for farm products. Originally,
it had a dirt floor which was later covered with a thin coat of cement.
Entrance to the cellar from the outside was by means of the tradi-
tional cellar door. The inside entrance from the living room and
the steps were added later. This entrance and the steps have since
been reconstructed. The stairway to the second floor had no rail-
ing but a wood partition which has also been replaced.

The floor in the living room consists of huge, hand-hewn,
hardwood logs not keyed to the walls but laid directly on the sandy
soil. The floor boards are nailed to the logs. The floor in the
kitchen was replaced by random width oak flooring.

The original cedar shingled roof was covered with asphalt
shingles sometime in the late 1920's.

GPO 892 455
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John Dods Tavern is typical of taverns of the mid-18th
century. A tavern was very important in the 18th century because,
except for the church, it was the only place that people could
meet and discuss events that were happening around them. Dods
Tavern fulfilled this need for a place to gather for both the
townspeople and travelers of Lincoln Park, then Beavertown.
Particularly throughout the war the tavern was widely used by
people anxious to hear news of the war. The tavern which was listed
on Erskines War Map of 1778-1779, was on the intersection that
led to Morristown and was used as a stopping place for many war
travelers. Colonel Van Courtland who served under General
Washington during the war was a frequent visitor to the tavern.

In a letter from a Colonel Tilghman to Colonel Van Courtland

on August 27, 1781, he requests Colonel Van Courtland to direct

his route from Morristown and turn left, "when you reach Dods
Tavern". Colonel Van Courtland in turn wrote to General Washington
expressing his desire to take the route "where the road turns

off at Dods Tavern".

Besides being an improtant crossroad during the war, Dods
Tavern was to be utilized by a different type of traveler in
the 19th Century. In the 1830's the Morris Canal was built
along side the tavern which added to the amount of travelers
using the tavern services.

John Dod built the tavern in 1769 on a site within the 208
acres of land that he had purchased. The tavern was operated
by members of the Dod family until the second half of the 19th
century.

The John Dod house and tavern are two of a few known
surviving 18th century stone buildings in Morris County. When
originally constructed the buildings were on the same tract of
land. Through sales of the land and neighborhood development
they now appear to be separate. Both represent modest sized
structures with later additions. From the exterior both are
basic fieldstone structures with no elaboration. The interior
of the Dod House has a multiple sunburst carved mantel which
is very unusual. This as well as the open staircase are
relatively simple though carefully finished.
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